
	[bookmark: _GoBack]
	


kirklinton parish history
Written in 1884
The History and Directory of East Cumberland
This parish, called in old documents Kirk-Levington, extends about eleven miles long the south side of the river Lyne, having an average breadth of two miles. It is bounded on the north by the river just named; on the south by Stanwix, Scaleby, and Walton; on the east by Stapleton; and on the west by Rockcliffe. The surface is level, having only a slight inclination towards the north-west and presents a varied soil according to the district. A cold, wet, and barren clay prevails in the east, and in other places a loamy fertile soil is found, producing excellent crops of wheat, oats, potatoes etc. Freestone is abundant, and is quarried in several places, but the great majority of inhabitants are employed in the cultivation of the land. The parish is divided into three townships-Hethersgill, Middle Quarter, and West Linton, whose united area is 8,000 acres, and population 1,434.
 The barony of Levington, comprehending the parishes of Kirklinton and Scaleby, and formerly Skelton and Orton, was granted by Ranulph de Meschines in the reign of Henry 1, to Richard Boyville, and the grant was confirmed by that king, the posterity of the grantee adopted the name of the barony, and were known as deLevington, and Kirklinton became their principal residence. A younger branch of the same family were settled at Westlinton. Ranulph Levington, the last of the name, baron of Levington, died in the year 1253, leaving behind him an only daughter, his heiress, who afterwards became the wife of Eustace de Baliol. The barony does not appear to have been conveyed to her husband, and after her death without issue, it was divided the six sisters of her father or their representatives, who were at that time Richard Kirkbride, William Lockard, Eufemia, wife of John Seaton, Walter Twinham Knight, Gilbert Southaik, Maud, wife of Nicholas Agenlochs, Maud Carrick, Patrick Trompe, Walter, son of Walter Corry, and Margaret wife of Henry Malton. Robert Tilliol subsequently purchased two of these divided portions, comprising of the manor of Kirklinton, which descended by marriage to the Musgraves, and was sold by Sir Edward Musgrave, along with other estates, to enable him to maintain a regiment for the support of Charles the first. This manor was purchased by Edmund Appleby, Esq., whose son Joseph, married Dorothy, heiress of the Dacres of Lanercost, and that name was ultimately assumed by the Appleby’s. The late Joseph Dacre, Esq., was succeeded in his estates by his brother, the Rev. William Dacre, from whom Kirklinton was purchased by the trustees of George Graham Kirklinton Esq. Who is now lord of the manor.
The village of Kirklinton, situated four miles east by south of Longtown, and nine miles north east of Carlisle, is partly in Middle Quarter and partly in Hethersgill; the church being in the former, and the hall and the rectory in the latter. Kirklinton Hall the property and residence of Mrs. KirklintonSaul, occupies a slightly elevated situation. This beautiful mansion which has been recently rebuilt, is surrounded by stately trees which lend it an air of sylvan beauty. A short distance from the hall may be traced the remains of an ancient castle once a strong fortress, supposed to have been the baronial seat of the Boyvilles, lords of Levington. Its situation commanded an extensive prospect along the beautiful vale of Lyne to the Solway Firth, which, there is reason to believe, formerly flowed much further up this valley than at present. In 1263 Eustace de Baliol, on behalf of himself and wife, Maud de Levington, obtained a charter to hold a weekly market at Levington on Thursday, and a fair for three days at festival of St. Peter on June 29th, both of these have long been obsolete.
The Church, dedicated to St. Cuthbert, and erected in 1845 displaced an old Norman edifice, supposed from its very early Norman architecture, to have been built by the first baron of Levington, in the reign of Henry 1st. The present edifice is a handsome Gothic structure of red freestone, consisting of nave, chancel, porch, and embattled tower. The interior presents a chaste and elegant appearance. The chancel is lighted by a tripartite window of stained glass, bearing well executed representations of the redeemer, the Evangelists etc. It was gift of J. M. Strachan, Esq. Several interesting remains of the old fabric have been preserved in the present edifice among them are a Norman arch; portions of the old pillars and arches bearing evident marks of fire; fragments of ancient tombstones, one of which bears Saxon devices and mythical symbolism; a perfect specimen of the top of an English window, two ancient sepulchral slabs on which are the usual floriated crosses; an ancient piscina, and several Roman stones, the latter most probably taken from the Roman wall, which supplied a great portion of the materials for nearly all the churches and castles along he English border. Whilst excavating for the foundation of the tower, sixty human skeletons were found buried within a short space of each other. But neither inscription nor monument of any kind was found to identify these moldering remains of humanity, or to indicate the period of their interment. The benefice is a rectory in the patronage of G. Graham Kirklinton, Esq., and now held by the Rev. George Bradshaw Grant, LL.D. In the Kings book it is Valued at £1 1s. But is now worth £100 a year, which is derived from the following sources, viz.:£52 9s, rent charge, as commuted in 1839, a modus, formerly paid in money in lieu of tithes; £10 derived from glebe land, and the interest of £1,110 obtained from Queen Anne’s bounty. The parish registers commence in 1652, but from age and dampness they are scarcely legible until 1706.
Charters.- Hannah Usher, of Rockcliffe, by will dated 24th sept 1747 left £20 the interest thereof to be divided among the poor of the parish. The Rev T Pattinson, formerly rector of the parish, left by will, in 1832 the sum of £20 the interest whereof he directed to be distributed among the poor after divine service on Christmas day.  
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